
 

 

1 

PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

 

Date: Wednesday, 29 June 2022   
Time 10.30 am  
Place: Surrey County Council, Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, 

Surrey, RH2 8EF 
 

 

Contact: Joss Butler   
   
Email: joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk  
 

 
APPOINTED MEMBERS [11] 

Tim Hall (Chairman) Leatherhead and Fetcham East; 
Ernest Mallett MBE West Molesey; 
Penny Rivers Godalming North; 
Jeffrey Gray Caterham Valley; 
Jonathan Hulley (Vice-Chairman) Foxhills, Thorpe & Virginia Water; 
Victor Lewanski Reigate; 
David Lewis Cobham; 
Scott Lewis Woodham and New Haw; 
Catherine Powell Farnham North; 
Richard Tear Bagshot, Windlesham and Chobham; 
Jeremy Webster  Caterham Hill; 

 
EX OFFICIO MEMBERS (NON-VOTING)  [4] 

Tim Oliver 
Becky Rush 

Leader of the Council 
Deputy Leader of the Council  

Weybridge; 
Warlingham; 

Helyn Clack Chair of the Council Dorking Rural; 
Saj Hussain  Vice-Chair of the Council Knaphill and Goldsworth West; 

 
APPOINTED SUBSTITUTES [12] 

Stephen Cooksey Dorking South and the Holmwoods; 
Nick Darby The Dittons; 
Amanda Boote The Byfleets; 
Luke Bennett Banstead, Woodmansterne & Chipstead; 
David Harmer Waverley Western Villages; 
Trefor Hogg Camberley East; 
Riasat Khan Woking North; 
Carla Morson Ash; 
Mark Sugden Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott; 
Buddhi Weerasinghe Lower Sunbury and Halliford; 
Fiona White Guildford West; 
Keith Witham Worplesdon; 

 
 

 
Register of planning applications: http://planning.surreycc.gov.uk/ 



 

 
2 



 

 
3 

AGENDA 
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of substitutions 
under Standing Order 41. 
 

 

2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2022.  
 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

3  PETITIONS 
 

To receive any petitions from members of the public in accordance 
with Standing Order 84 (please see note 5 below). 
 

 

4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

To answer any questions received from local government electors 
within Surrey in accordance with Standing Order 85 (please see 
note 6 below). 
 

 

5  MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME 
 
To answer any questions received from Members of the Council in 
accordance with Standing Order 68. 
 

 

6  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the 
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter  

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in 

respect of any item(s) of business being considered at 
this meeting 

NOTES: 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any 
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any 
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the 
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom 
the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner) 

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate 
in the discussion and vote on that matter unless that 
interest could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

7  APPLICATION FOR VILLAGE GREEN STATUS, LAND AT 
ELMBRIDGE RECREATION GROUND, KINGFIELD 
 

The committee is asked to consider whether to register the Land 
the subject of this Application as a Village Green.  
 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 5 - 74) 



 

 
4 

8  DECISION ON PLANNING APPEAL REF: 
APP/B3600/W/21/3268579 AND ON COSTS APPLICATION - 
LOXLEY WELL SITE - LAND SOUTH OF DUNSFOLD ROAD 
AND EAST OF HIGH LOXLEY ROAD, DUNSFOLD, SURREY, 
GU8 4BW. 
 

On 27 November 2020, the Planning and Regulatory Committee 
refused planning application Ref. WA/2019/0796 for the 
construction, operation and decommissioning of a well site for the 
exploration and appraisal of hydrocarbon minerals from one 
exploratory borehole (Loxley-1) and one side - track borehole 
(Loxley - 1z) for a temporary period of three years involving the 
siting of plant and equipment, the construction of a new access 
track, a new highway junction with High Loxley Road, highway 
improvements at the junction of High Loxley Road and Dunsfold 
Road and the erection of a boundary fence and entrance gates with 
restoration to agriculture. 
 
This report provides details of the outcome of a recovered appeal 
against that decision and an associated application for partial 
costs. 
 

(Pages 75 - 
102) 

9  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Planning & Regulatory Committee will be 
on 27 July 2022. 
 

 

  

PRIVATE TRAINING SESSION 
 

 

10  MEMBER TRAINING - PLANNING FOR OIL AND GAS 
 

An introduction to planning for hydrocarbons in the County.  
 

 

 
 

Joanna Killian 
Chief Executive 

21 June 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
5 

 
MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 

 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.   
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings.  Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

 

Note:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet 
site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed.  The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room and 
using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.   
 
 

 

NOTES: 

 
1. Members are requested to let the Democratic Services Officer have the wording of any 

motions and amendments not later than one hour before the start of the meeting. 

2. Substitutions must be notified to the Democratic Services Officer by the absent Member 
or group representative at least half an hour in advance of the meeting. 

3. Planning officers will introduce their report and be able to provide information or advice to 
Members during the meeting. They can also be contacted before the meeting if you 
require information or advice on any matter. Members are strongly encouraged to 
contact the relevant case officer in advance of the meeting if you are looking to amend or 
add conditions or are likely to be proposing a reason for refusal. It is helpful if officers are 
aware of these matters in advance so that they can better advise Members both before 
and during the meeting. 

4. Members of the public can speak at the Committee meeting on any planning application 
that is being reported to the Committee for decision, provided they have made written 
representations on the application at least 14 days in advance of the meeting, and 
provided they have registered their wish to do so with the Democratic Services Officer no 
later than midday on the working day before the meeting.  The number of public 
speakers is restricted to five objectors and five supporters in respect of each application. 

5. Petitions from members of the public may be presented to the Committee provided that 
they contain 100 or more signatures and relate to a matter within the Committee’s terms 
of reference. The presentation of petitions on the following matters is not allowed: (a) 



 

 
6 

matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to 
Information Act 1985; and (b) planning applications. Notice must be given in writing at 
least 14 days before the meeting. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer for 
further advice. 

6. Notice of public questions must be given in writing at least 7 days before the meeting. 
Members of the public may ask one question relating to a matter within the Committee’s 
terms of reference. Questions on “confidential” or “exempt” matters and planning 
applications are not allowed. Questions should relate to general policy and not detail. 
Please contact the Democratic Services Officer for further advice. 

7. On 10 December 2013, the Council agreed amendments to the Scheme of Delegation so 
that: 

 All details pursuant (applications relating to a previously granted permission) and 
non-material amendments (minor issues that do not change the principles of an 
existing permission) will be delegated to officers (irrespective of the number of 
objections). 

 Any full application with fewer than 5 objections, which is in accordance with the 
development plan and national polices will be delegated to officers. 

 Any full application with fewer than 5 objections that is not in accordance with the 
development plan (i.e. waste development in Green Belt) and national policies will be 
delegated to officers in liaison with either the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the 
Planning & Regulatory Committee. 

 Any application can come before committee if requested by the local member or a 
member of the Planning & Regulatory Committee. 
 

The revised Scheme of Delegation came into effect as of the date of the Council 
decision. 

 
 



 

 
7 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 – GUIDANCE ON THE DETERMINATION OF 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 
This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations 
section in the following committee reports.  
 
Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning 
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under 
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when 
determining planning applications to “have regard to (a) the provisions of the development plan, 
so far as material to the application, (b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to 
the application, and (c) any other material considerations”. This section of the 1990 Act must be 
read together with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (2004 Act), 
which provides that: “If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in 
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.” 
 
Development plan 

 
In Surrey the adopted development plan consists of the: 

 Surrey Minerals Local Plan 2011(comprised of the Core Strategy and Primary 
Aggregates Development Plan Documents (DPD)) 

 Surrey Waste Local Plan 2019-2033 adopted December 2020 (comprised of the Surrey 
Waste Local Plan Part 1 Policies and Surrey Waste Local Plan Part 2 Sites)  

 Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD for the Minerals and Waste Plans 2013 (Aggregates 
Recycling DPD 2013) 

 Any saved local plan policies and the adopted Local Development Documents 
(development plan documents and supplementary planning documents) prepared by the 
eleven Surrey district/borough councils in Surrey 

 South East Plan 2009 Policy NRM6 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (apart 
from a policy relating to the former Upper Heyford Air Base in Oxfordshire the rest of the 
plan was revoked on 25 March 2013) 

 Any neighbourhood plans (where they have been approved by the local community at 
referendum) 

 
Set out in each report are the development plan documents and policies which provide the 
development plan framework relevant to the application under consideration.  
 
Material considerations 
 
Material considerations will vary from planning application to planning application and can 
include: relevant European policy; the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 and 
subsequent updates; the March 2014 national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) and updates; 
National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) October 2014; Waste Management Plan for 
England 2021; extant planning policy statements; Government Circulars and letters to Chief 
Planning Officers; emerging local development documents (being produced by Surrey County 
Council, the district/borough council or neighbourhood forum in whose area the application site 
lies).  
 
National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance  

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was revised in July 2021. The revised NPPF 
replaces the previous NPPF published in March 2012 and revised in July 2018 and February 
2019. It continues to provide consolidated guidance for local planning authorities and decision 
takers in relation to decision-taking (determining planning applications) and in preparing plans 
(plan making).  

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/revised-national-planning-policy-framework


 

 
8 

 
The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected 
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides 
related guidance. The NPPF should be read alongside other national planning policies on 
Waste, Travellers, Planning for Schools Development, Sustainable Drainage Systems, Parking, 
and Starter Homes . 
 
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 10). 
The NPPF makes clear that the planning system has three overarching objectives in order to 
achieve sustainable development, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 
supportive ways in order to take opportunities to secure net gains across each of the different 
objectives. These objectives are economic, social and environmental. 
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF does not change the 
statutory principle that determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with 
the adopted development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is 
one of those material considerations. In determining planning applications the NPPF (paragraph 
11) states that development proposals that accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies 
which are most important in determining an application are out of date, permission should be 
granted unless the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed 
against the policies in the NPPF as a whole. 
 
The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date 
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 219 states that in determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the 
greater the weight they may be given). 
 
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
GUIDANCE FOR INTERPRETATION 

 
The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights 
into English law.  It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act 
incompatibly with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act.  As such, those 
persons directly affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to 
claim a breach of their human rights.  Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact 
of the development against the benefits to the public at large. 
 
The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article 
1 of Protocol 1.  These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act. 
 
Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing.  Officers must be satisfied that the 
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an 
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received 
have been properly covered in the report. 
 
Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life.  This has been interpreted as the 
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference.  Officers must judge whether the 
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8. 
 
Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.  
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions 

http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6078/2113371.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6316/1966097.pdf
http://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/December%202014/18%20December/6.%20DCLG-sustainable-drainage-systems.pdf
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2015-03-25/HCWS488/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2015-03-02/HCWS324/


 

 
9 

and possibly other rights.  Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed 
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions. 
 
These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed 
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the 
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the 
protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 
 
Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective.  This 
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question 
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe. 
 
European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only 
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that 
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for 
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be 
engaged. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES of the meeting of the PLANNING AND REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 25 May 2022 at Surrey County Council, 

Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2 8EF. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its next 
meeting. 
 
Members Present: 

 
 Tim Hall (Chairman) 

Ernest Mallett MBE 
Penny Rivers 
Jeffrey Gray 
Jonathan Hulley (Vice-Chairman) 
Victor Lewanski 
David Lewis 
Scott Lewis 
Catherine Powell 
Richard Tear 
Jeremy Webster 
 
Officers informed the committee that the applicant for Item 7 of the 
agenda, Land at Silvermere Haven Pet Cemetery and Crematorium, had 
withdrawn their application and therefore it would not be considered at 
the meeting.  
 

AAPOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 

 
No apologies had been received.  
 

40/22 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  [Item 2] 

 
The Minutes were APPROVED as an accurate record of the previous 
meeting. 
 

41/22 PETITIONS  [Item 3] 

 
There were none. 
 

42/22 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  [Item 4] 

 
There were none. 
 

43/22 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME  [Item 5] 

 
There were none. 
 

44/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  [Item 6] 

 
There were none. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

2

Item 2



 

Page 2 of 3 

45/22 MINERALS/WASTE EL/2019/2722 - LAND AT SILVERMERE HAVEN PET 
CEMETERY AND CREMATORIUM, BYFLEET ROAD, COBHAM, SURREY 
KT11 1DZ  [Item 7] 

 
This item was withdrawn by the applicant.  
 

46/22 MINERALS/WASTE TA2020/434 RE20/00463/CON - NORTH PARK FARM 
QUARRY, NORTH PARK LANE, BLETCHINGLEY, SURREY RH9 8ND; 
LAND NORTH EAST OF PENDELL FARM, PENDELL ROAD, 
BLETCHINGLEY, RH1 4QH, MERCERS EAST QUARRY, BLETCHINGLEY 
ROAD, MERSTHAM, REDHILL; AND LAND NORTH WEST OF 
BREWERSTREET FARM, BREWER STREET, BLETCHINGLEY, REDHILL, 
RH1 4QP.  [Item 8] 

 
Officers:  

Caroline Smith (Planning Group Manager) 
Nancy El-Shatoury (Principal Highways and Planning Solicitor) 
Stephen Jenkins (Planning Development Manager) 
Andre Ferreira (Regulatory Business Manager) 
Samantha Murphy (Planning Development Team Leader) 
Christopher Reynolds (Senior Historic Buildings Officer) 
Simon Elson (Principal Environment Enhancement Officer) 
 
Speakers: 
 

None.  
 
Key points raised during the discussion:  
 

1. Officer introduced the report and provided Members with a brief 
summary. It was noted that the application was for the extraction of 
silica sand from land north west of Brewerstreet Farm; the continued 
extraction from land known as Pendell Farm Quarry and North Park 
Farm Quarry; retention of a silica sand processing plant and ancillary 
structures at North Park Farm Quarry including stockpiling and storage 
areas, water and tailings pipelines, water treatment and holding 
lagoons and the haul road; retention of the conveyor and access 
tracks; continued temporary diversions of public footpaths 160, 161, 
162 and 163 (parts) and public bridleways 142 and 148 (parts) and the 
continued stopping up of footpath 121 and 143 (parts); diversion of an 
unnamed brook along the boundary of land known as Pendell Farm 
Quarry and land north east of Brewerstreet Farm; with associated 
landscaping and woodland planting; and restoration and aftercare to 
agriculture and nature conservation. Members noted a late response 
from the Environmental Agency.  

2. Members noted that an update sheet was published on 24 May 2022.  
3. A Member raised concern with the proximity of the works to the listed 

buildings. Officers explained that Historic England had initially 
assessed the works to have a high level of less than substantial harm 
to the buildings. The council and Historic England recognised that the 
works were an important mineral resource and so mitigations were put 
in place prior to consideration by the committee. These included:  

a. Planting to mitigate issues caused by views from the 
conversation area.  

b. Additional screening along Becks Cottage.  

Page 2

2



 

Page 3 of 3 

c. Additional documentation requested to show long term 
impacts.  

4. The Historic Buildings Officer confirmed that he was content that tree 
planting would mitigate the visual issue and believed that nothing more 
could be done to enhance the screening.  

5. Members sought officers opinion on the flooding risks to the historic 
buildings. The Historic Buildings Officer confirmed that he was not 
concerned by the risk of flooding due to the distance between the 
buildings and the soil bunds.  

6. The Committee asked whether a condition could be included to 
address the risk of flooding from Water Lane on to the field and 
potentially damaging the buildings. Officers explained that there was a 
surface water drainage condition for both the operation and 
restoration. Members noted that the condition was an initial condition 
which needed to come in before any soil stripping took place on the 
extension area. Officers suggested that the condition be amended to 
include a regular review of the drainage scheme which was agreed by 
Members. Officers also highlighted that any issues could be picked up 
through the Landscape Ecological Plan.  

7. Members noted that the Environmental Agency had suggested an 
additional condition related to contamination. A Member requested 
that the condition be amended to prevent works from continuing on 
site when contamination was found. Officers explained that stopping 
works may not be reasonable and proportionate to the level of 
contamination found and therefore suggested that, in the event of 
contamination being found, works be stopped within the vicinity of the 
identified contamination.  

8. The Historic Buildings Officer noted that, following restoration, it was 
not possible to return the landscape to its original topography.  

9. Members noted that the screening would be implemented to disguise 
both the quarry and the soil bunds however some views of the quarry 
would still be visible from historic buildings.  

10. Members noted that it was possible for the permissive footpaths to be 
retained upon restoration of the area.  

11. Officers highlighted that the seed mix to screen the soil bunds included 
both trees and shrubs.  

 
Resolved:   
 

The committee agreed to PERMIT subject to any added and amended 
conditions and informatives discussed at the meeting, and any conditions and 
informatives from page 186 of the agenda, and any added and amended 
conditions and informatives outlined within the update sheet.  
 

47/22 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 9] 

 
The date of the next meeting was noted. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting closed at 11.40 am 
 _________________________ 
 Chairman 

Page 3

2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4

2



 
 

1 
 

TO: PLANNING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE DATE: 29th June 2022 

BY: COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS OFFICER  
DISTRICT(S) WOKING BOROUGH COUNCIL ELECTORAL DIVISION(S): 

WOKING SOUTH 
Ayesha Azad 
 

PURPOSE: FOR DECISION GRID REF: 500973 157630 
 
TITLE: 
 

 
APPLICATION FOR VILLAGE GREEN STATUS, LAND AT ELMBRIDGE 

RECREATION GROUND, KINGFIELD 
 

 
SUMMARY  
The committee is asked to consider whether to register the Land the subject of this Application 
as a Village Green. 
 
Application for Village Green status by Mr Robert Shatwell (the Applicant) dated 9 December 
2019 relating to land at Elmbridge Recreation Ground, Kingfield, Woking.  
 
The County Council is the Commons Registration Authority under the Commons Registration 
Act 1965 and the Commons Act 2006 which administers the Registers of Common Land and 
Town or Village Greens. Under Section 15 of the 2006 Act the County Council can register new 
land as a Town or Village Green on application. 
 
 
The recommendation is to REJECT the Application 
 
 
 
APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
Applicant 
Mr Robert Shatwell 
 
Land 
Elmbridge Recreation Ground, Kingfield, Woking. 
 
Date of Application 
9 December 2019 
 
 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE MATERIAL 
 
Annex A: Plan of Land submitted with Application 
Annex B: Evidence in support of Application 
Annex C: Woking Borough Council Objection 
Annex D: Applicant’s response to Objection 
Annex E: Statutory Declaration from Woking Borough Council  
Annex F: Applicant’s response to Statutory Declaration 
 
 
 

Page 5

7

Item 7



 
 

2 
 

 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 On 9 December 2019 Surrey County Council received an application for a new village 

green for the site of Elmbridge Recreation Ground, Kingsfield, Woking (Annex A). Checks 
identified a missing signature at section 11, and this was added by the applicant on 5 
February 2021. 

 
1.2 The Application was made on the basis that “a significant number of the inhabitants of any 

locality or neighbourhood within a locality have indulged as of right in lawful sports and 
pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years”. The Application was accompanied 
by 2 photographs of the area, a list of 48 signatories who claimed use of the land for 
recreation/air and exercise and 4 signatories who claimed that the site had been in 
constant use for over 20 years as evidence in support of the claim for registration (Annex 
B).  
 

1.3 The Commons (Registration of Town or Village Greens) (Interim Arrangements) (England) 
Regulations 2007 sets out the process to be followed by any applicant seeking to register 
a new Town or Village Green and the process to be followed by the Commons Registration 
Authority. Following changes to the law, under the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013, the 
Registration Authority must establish whether an application is valid under section 15C of 
the Commons Act 2006 before the application can be considered. 
 

1.4 The relevant planning authorities were consulted to establish whether there were any 
trigger events that would result in the inability of the Council to proceed with the 
Application. No trigger events were identified. 
 

1.5 A public notice was placed in the local press on 22 April 2021 with an objection period 
running until 14 June 2021. The Application was placed on public deposit at local libraries 
and at the District Council offices. 
 

1.6 An objection was received from Woking Borough Council (Objector) as owner of the 
Application Land on 15 June 2021 (Annex C), and the Applicant was given an opportunity 
to respond to that objection (Annex D). 
 

1.7 Legal advice was sought from the Council’s Legal Services regarding both the evidence 
submitted in support of the claim, the objection received from the landowner and the 
Applicant’s response to it.  
 

1.8 The Council’s Legal Services sought Counsel’s opinion on whether the Application needed 
to go to a non-statutory inquiry, or whether the Application should be rejected due to 
insufficient evidence. 
 

1.9 Counsel advised the Council’s Legal Services that the Objector should put material 
relevant to their argument in the form of a statutory declaration and that the Applicant 
should be given an opportunity to respond. A statutory declaration by Woking Borough 
Council was submitted on 3 December 2021 and the Applicant responded to this on 10 
December 2021 (Annexe E & F). 
 

1.10 Counsel then considered the evidence supplied in the statutory declaration and response 
and gave advice to the Council on the Application. 

 
1.11 The Council’s Legal Services issued a report to the Countryside Access Team setting out 

their recommendation to refuse the Application on the basis that it fails to meet the criteria 
set out in Section 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 for registration as a village green. 
  

1.12 Section 6, Analysis and Commentary below sets out the factors to be considered in this 
case.  

Page 6

7



 
 

3 
 

1.13 The Commons Registration Officer is therefore now placing this matter before members for 
consideration.  

 
 
 
2. CONSULTATIONS AND PUBLICITY 
 
Borough/District Council 
 
2.1 Woking Borough Council   Objection received as landowner 
 
Consultees (Statutory and Non Statutory) 
 
2.2 The Open Spaces Society:    No views received 
 
2.3  Local Residents – adjoining properties:  No views received 
 
2.4 DOCC – Bob Milton:     No views received 
 
2.5 Borough Councillors – Cllr Hughes, Cllr Morales No views received 
 
2.6 County Councillor – Mr Forster   No views received 
 
 
Summary of publicity undertaken 
 
2.7 Documents placed on public deposit at local council offices and local library.   
 
 
3. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 Public Authorities are required to act, as far as possible, compatibly with the European 

Convention on Human Rights, now enforceable in English Courts by way of the Human 
Rights Act 1998. The officer’s view is that this proposal will have no adverse impact on 
public amenity and has no human rights implications. 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  The costs of advertising and of seeking Counsel’s opinion have already been incurred. 
 
 
 
 
5. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 If the Application Land is registered as a village green it will be subject to the same 

statutory protection as other village greens and local people will have a guaranteed legal 
right to indulge in sports and pastimes over it on a permanent basis.  Registration is 
irrevocable and so the Application Land must be kept free from development or other 
encroachments. 

 
5.2 Woking Borough Council has submitted in its objection that the Application Land has 

been set aside as recreation ground, has been laid out as such and made available for 
public recreation and that is has been subsequently managed and maintained for this 
use.  

 
 

Page 7

7



 
 

4 
 

 
 
6. ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY 
 
6.1 Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables the Commons Registration Authority to 

register land as a Town or Village Green where certain conditions are met. In this 
instance the Application was made under section 15(2) which sets out that a TVG can be 
registered where:  

 
(a) A significant number of the inhabitants from any locality, or any neighbourhood 
within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports and pastimes on the land for a 
period of at least 20 years; and 

  
(b) They continue to do so at the time of the Application. 
 
 

6.2 Counsel’s opinion on this Application focused primarily on the ‘by right’ issue and the 
 argument put forward by the Objector that the Application Land had been held in 
 accordance with its statutory functions under section 12 of the Housing Act 1985 and its 
 predecessor legislation. 
 
6.3 In order to be successful in a claim relying on evidence of use, that use needs to have 

been ‘as of right’ for the requisite period of time. For the use of land to be ‘as of right’ it 
must have been undertaken without force, without secrecy and without permission. 

 
6.4 The Applicant submitted evidence that he claimed showed that the Application Land had 

been used ‘as of right’ for at least 20 years. This included photographs which identifies 
the Application Land as well as signatures from residents. 

 
6.5 The Objector claimed that the Application Land had been held in accordance with its 

statutory functions under section 12 of the Housing Act 1985 and its predecessor 
legislation meaning that the Application Land had been used ‘by right’ rather than ‘as of 
right’ (Annex C). The Objector submitted further evidence on the issue to which the 
Applicant responded (Annex E & F). 

 
6.6 The material submitted by the Objector with the statutory declaration included deeds and 

documents illustrating that the Application Land was acquired by the Objector in exercise 
of their statutory functions under the Housing Acts 1936 – 1949. 

 
6.7 The Application Land was built and maintained as a recreation ground and was made 

available to occupiers of the Elmbridge Estate under statutory powers and has 
subsequently been held under the powers within section 12 of the Housing Act 1985. 

 
6.9 The Supreme Court has held that if the land is held under a provision such as section 

12(1) of the Housing Act 1985 then members of the public will have a statutory right to 
use the land and no question of user ‘as of right’ can arise. 

 
6.10 This means that if the use of the land is the same for which the landowner has granted 

the public permission to use it, then that use cannot be said to be ‘as of right’, it has been 
‘by right’. This would be the case regardless of how long the land was used for. 

 
6.11 The Applicant has not in their representations disputed that the Objector acquired the 

Application Land under these statutory powers. They have also not disputed that the 
Objector held the Application Land under section 12 of the Housing Act 1985. 

 
6.12 SCC Legal services have indicated that Counsel’s advice to them on the way in which 

the landowner holds the land is that this defeats any claim that use is ‘as of right’ and 
that as a result the application is impossible to allow. Counsel advised that: “This clearly 

Page 8

7



 
 

5 
 

defeats any claim to be qualifying user under section 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 
because the requirements under that section for registration of a TVG are that the use 
must be ‘as of right’ …” and that land held under section 12 of the Housing Act 1985 or 
its predecessors is sufficient for it to be used pursuant to a statutory right and so used 
‘by right’ not ‘as of right’ making the Application impossible to allow.  

 
 
 
 
 
7. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
7.1 On review of the Application and evidence submitted, Counsel has advised that the 

Council should refuse the Application. This is on the basis that the Application Land has 
been shown to be used ‘by right’ and not ‘as of right’. The requirements of section 15(2) 
of the Commons Act 2006 have therefore not been satisfied as this requires the use of 
land to be ‘as of right’. This, as such, means that the recreation ground cannot be 
registered.  

 
7.2 The Council would not need to hold a non-statutory inquiry before determining the 

Application. This is because the important aspects of the relevant facts, specifically the 
‘by right’ ‘as of right’ issues, are not contentious. The Council can therefore proceed 
based on Counsel’s advice and determine the Application without holding an inquiry. 
Counsel’s advice in summary was: “… It is clear that the Application does not have 
substance and the Registration Authority should reject the Application based on 
uncontentious facts and the law as set out in R (Barkas) v North Yorkshire County 
Council [2014] 2 WLR 13. In these circumstances it is not necessary to hold an Inquiry 
following the guidance set out by the Court of Appeal in Whitmey1. I would advise that 
Surrey County Council proceeds to refuse this Application…” 

 
7.3 Therefore, Officers recommend that the Application is REJECTED.  
 
 
 
 
CONTACT  
CATHERINE VALIANT, COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS OFFICER 
 
TEL. NO. 
07976 394660 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
All documents quoted in the report. 
 
 
 
 

 
1 R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2005] QB 282 

Page 9

7



This page is intentionally left blank



TVG Application
Elmbridge Rec, Kingfield

OS terms & conditions
You are grunted a non-exclusive, royalty free,
revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the penod during which Surrey County Council makes it
available You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or
otherwise make available the Licensed Data to third parties in any form
Third party rights to enforce the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS

1:2,000
SURREY

III t4C1i

Date: 29/01/2021

ANNEX A

Page 11

7



This page is intentionally left blank



I do hereby certify that I have lived in The Elmbridge Estate in Kingfield, Woking for
more than 30 years. I do also hereby certify that I have used the area, known locally
as Elrnbridge Recreation Ground, as of right, for over 30 years for the purposes of
recreation, dog walking, air and exercise and wish to so continue to do so.

Signed Name
-(

ANNEX B

Page 13

7



I do hereby certify that I have lived in The Elmbridge Estate in Kingfield, Woking for
more than 30 years. I do also hereby certify that I have used the area, known locally
as Elmbridge Recreation Ground, as of right, for over 30 years for the purposes of
recreation, dog walking, air and exercise and wish to so continue to do so.

Signed Name

fy.
•/Pt1i

Page 14

7



I do hereby certify that I have lived in The Elmbridge Estate in Kingfield, Woking for
more than 30 years. I do also hereby certify that I have used the area, known locally
as Elmbridge Recreation Ground, as of right, for over 30 years for the purposes of
recreation, dog walking, air and exercise and wish to so continue to do so.

Signed Name

Page 15

7



I do hereby certify that I have lived in The Elmbridge Estate in Kingfield, Woldng for
more than 30 years. I do also hereby certify that I have used the area, known locally
as Elmbridge Recreation Ground, as of right, for over 30 years for the purposes of
recreation, dog wa1kir, air and exerci’se and wish to so continue to do so.

Signed - Name

Page 16

7



9 -f_

We, the undersigned residents of Elmbridge in Kingfield, Woking, do hereby
certify that we use the area known locally as Elmbridge Recreation Ground, as
of right, for the purposes of recreation, dog walking, air and relaxation and do
wish to continue to do so in perpetuity.

Signed Name

-
-

/ N

/- -- I

/

_

{
iZk

I ,

_________

- N\ LZ)

•

EE

__

____

N

__

10
:k4A-{st,4

I

-

-—

-- - —V

-

I) •V
••

•: Qi
- ---VV

- V V

Page 17

7



H

We, the undersigned residents of Elmbridge in Kingfield, Woking, do hereby
certifr that we use the area known locally as Elmbridge Recreation Ground, as

of right, for the purposes of recreation, dog walking, air and relaxation and do
wish to continue to do so in perpetuity.

Signed Name

---- -------

L
TC/flZ
(‘ryr4

I
‘ C ,L)

___

J-i)c-J

____________________

t)’ ‘Je r, wc

_______

jt-’ 1-\

________

4U-? L-±

__________

}L ( fri4j
- iv;i ;-:er -r-

‘tz

____

L

Lc/z ------

Page 18

7



Page 19

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Commons Registration Act 1965/Commons Act 2006 

Land at Elmbridge Recreation Ground, Queen Elizabeth Way, Woking 

Application for a new Village Green 

Application No 1887 

STATEMENT OF OBJECTION 

BY 

Woking Borough Council 

Civic Offices 

Gloucester Square 

Woking 

Surrey 

GU21 6YL 

Ref : AJF/7244 

ANNEX C

Page 21

7



 

 

This statement is notice of objection submitted on behalf of Woking Borough Council as 

landowner to an application made by the Applicant to Surrey County Council on 9 December 

2019 pursuant to section 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 to register an area of land as a 

village green.  

Background 

1. The application is made by Robert A Shatwell in respect of land known as Elmbridge 

 Recreation ground. The application is accompanied by 2 photographs and various 

 signatures of local residents.  

2. Woking Borough Council is the registered freehold owner of the land under land 

 registry title number SY756213. The land is located between Queen Elizabeth Way 

 and Elmbridge Lane, Woking, Surrey.  

3. Council records confirm the land is managed by the Housing team as local housing 

 authority. The land was acquired by the Council for the purposes of providing housing. 

 Council records show that all the properties surrounding the recreation ground were 

 council owed but some have over the years been sold to tenants under the Right to 

 Buy Scheme. However, a number of properties are still retained by the Council as 

 housing and even those properties sold under the Right to Buy Scheme the council 

 has a vested interest in those properties as Freeholder.   

4. Planning records show that planning permission was granted in 1948 for the 

 houses in the Elmbridge estate. A subsequent planning consent was granted in 1964 

 for the construction of a rear access to serve the 75 council houses. The permission 

 refers to open spaces and the plans show the recreation ground in situ. The land has 

 therefore been partly developed as public sector housing accommodation and 

 remainder of the land was set aside as a recreation ground provided and maintained 

 by the Council. The land has been laid out as such and made available for 

 public recreation. It has been subsequently managed and maintained it for this use 

 thereafter.  

5. The Council has researched its archives in order to discover material relevant to the 

 acquisition of the land. A conveyance dated 12 April 1951 made between A & J 

 Simmons Limited and Urban District Of Woking states:- 

 “2.  The said property being required by the Council in the exercise of their  

 Statutory functions under the Housing Acts 1936 – 1949 …………………….” 

6. The conveyance confirms the land was acquired for the purposes of the Council 

 meeting its statutory obligation to provide housing under the Housing Act 1936. Since 

 the land was laid out as a recreation ground it was made available to the occupiers of 

 the Elmbridge estate under the statutory power within section 80 of the Housing Act 

 1936 and subsequently under the similar provisions of section 12 of the Housing Act 

 1985.  

7. The housing was built and the Council has laid out and maintained the recreation 

 ground pursuant to the now section 12 of the Housing Act 1985. 

Page 22

7



 

 

8. The Council as local housing authority has provided and maintained in connection with 

 housing accommodation provided by them a recreation ground to serve a beneficial 

 purpose in connection with the requirements of the persons for whom the housing 

 accommodation is provided. Members of the public therefore have a statutory right to 

 use the land for recreational purposes. As such the land is held under s.12 of the 1985 

 Act and is used “by right” (i.e. with permission) and not “as of right”.  

9. The Supreme Court in the case R (Barkas) –v- North Yorkshire County Council 2014 

 held that land cannot not be registered as a town or village green where its use by the 

 public was permitted by statute as such use is considered to be by right rather than as 

 of right. 

Maintenance of the land for open public recreational space 

10. The land has been maintained by the Council. The general grounds maintenance is 

 carried out by council contractors Serco as part of an Environment contract, which 

 covers all the Council’s green space, including public parks and recreation grounds, 

 highway verges and Housing land. The Council has provided an informal kick-about 

 area comprising two MUGA goal ends with rubber surfacing immediately in-front  of 

 each.  

11. Maintenance of the land by Serco includes grass cutting of the open space area once 

 a month, the land has a weekly inspection by a qualified play inspector, the vegetation 

 is cut back annually, annual weed killing of the area for hardstanding weeds usually 

 around June/July. Other works will also be carried out if needed or requested by the 

 Council.  

12. These acts of maintenance and management of the land are evidence that the land 

 has been set out and is maintained as a recreation ground pursuant to section 80 of 

 the Housing Act 1936. Such acts may also be considered to give rise to an inference 

 of permission.  

Development Plans 

13. The land was considered as part of the Strategic Housing Land Availability 

 Assessment (SHLAA) in 2017. The main role of the SHLAA is to provide information 

 on the opportunities available to meet the Borough’s housing requirement. The land is 

 identified SHLAA ref - SHLAAHOE017. The report sets out that this parcel of land 

 currently contains parking areas, garages and open recreation space. Among the 

 identified constraints to residential development was the loss of open recreation space. 

 It is therefore clear that the land remains open recreation space.  

Statutory Criteria to be met for registration 

14. The criteria which must be met for an application to add land to the register of town 

 and village greens to be successful are set out in Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 

 Act. The application has been made under Section 15(1) which states:- 

 “Any person may apply to the commons registration authority to register land as a 

 town or village green if subsection 2 applies”. 

Page 23

7



 

 

15. Section 15(2) provides that a town or village green has come into existence where:- 

 “a) a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any   

  neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports and 

  pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years; and 

 b)  they continue to do so at the time of the application.” 

16. For the land to qualify as a village green evidence must be submitted to satisfy all the 

 criteria above. Failure to meet any one of the tests means that the land is not legally 

 a green and cannot be registered as such.  

Grounds of Objection 

17. The usage of the land by the public for lawful sports and past times has not been ‘as 

 of right’ as required by s15(2) of the Commons Act 2006.   

18. The land is held under statutory powers for recreational purposes and the public have 

 the right to use the land for recreational purposes. The Council argues that the users 

 are exercising their statutory right to use the land.  

19. The burden of proof lies upon the Applicant to show that all the qualifying criteria have 

 been properly and strictly proved. As set out in the case of R –v- Suffolk CC ex p Steed 

 1996 the onus of proving that the land has become a town or village green lies upon 

 the applicant. The court stated “it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land 

 registered as a village green so it must be properly and strictly proved”.  

Significant number 

20. The application is supported by 4 signatures from residents stating the land has been 

 used for over 30 years for the purposes of ‘recreation, dog walking, air and exercise’. 

 There is also 48 signatures from residents stating they use the land for the purposes 

 of ‘recreation, dog walking, air and relaxation’.  

21. It is noted that the 2006 Act does not define what constitutes a ‘significant number’.

 However, the approach adopted by the High Court in the case of R (Alfred McApline 

 Homes Ltd) –v- Staffordshire County Council 2002 was that what matters is that the 

 number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that their 

 use of the land signifies that it is the general use by the local community for informal 

 recreation, rather than occasional use by individuals as trespassers. It was accepted 

 that it does not mean a considerable or substantial  number. The Council does not 

 dispute that 52 signatures from residents constitutes a significant number.  

Inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within a locality 

22. The use needs to be a significant number of inhabitants of a locality or of a 

 neighbourhood within a locality.  

23. The applicant fails to identify in the application whether it is a locality or neighbourhood 

 within a locality. However, a map was provided marking the area shaded in orange. 

 The area appears to fall within the Hoe Valley ward.  

Page 24

7



 

 

24. The evidence by way of signatures does not provide the residents address. It is 

 therefore not enough to demonstrate that the inhabitants came from the Hoe Valley 

 ward of Woking. In our opinion this element of the criteria has not been satisfied. 

Lawful sports and pastimes on the land 

25. The evidence submitted refers to ‘recreation’ amongst other things. They fail to 

 describe the range of activities undertaken. In the case of R –v- Oxfordshire CC, ex 

 parte Sunningwell PC 2000 it is established that lawful sports and pastimes do not 

 have to be organised sports or have a communal element. Informal and solitary 

 activities such as dog walking are sufficient as long as there is an established pattern 

 of use and it is not trivial and sporadic.  

26. The evidence submitted as part of the application is not detailed enough and does not 

 specify how much use of the land there was by them during the relevant period. Matters 

 of how regularly the land was used and for what purpose are crucial. In the absence 

 of evidence that precisely describes the nature of recreation/activities undertaken and 

 state how the land was used, and how often e.g. how many times per week it does not 

 meet the criteria. The use may have been occasional which doesn’t satisfy the criteria. 

As of right 

 27. The Applicant  must show, on the balance of probabilities, that the use was “as of right”, 

 which is part of the qualifying criteria under section 15 of the 2006 Act. 

28. For the use to be ‘as of right’ it must be without force, without secrecy and without 

 permission.  

29. The Council does not dispute the land has been used openly and without force. The 

 Council disputes the use has been ‘as of right’. It is the Councils submission that the 

 use was with permission. The land is held under statutory powers for recreational 

 purposes and  the public have the right to use the land for recreational purposes. 

30. The Council argue that the residents have exercised their statutory right to use the 

 land for recreational purposes. The land is held under statutory powers and as a result 

 the use is considered to be by right rather than as of right.  

31. The land was purchased by the Council and the 1951 conveyance specifies the 

 statutory power under which it entered into the conveyance.  

31. As mentioned above the Supreme Court case of R (Barkas) –v- North Yorkshire 

 County Council 2014  established land cannot not be registered as a village green 

 where its use by the public was permitted by statute as such use is considered to be 

 by right rather than as of right. 

32. This element of the criteria is therefore not satisfied. 

For a period exceeding 20 years 

33. The applicant must show that local inhabitants have used the land continuously for not 

 less than 20 years. Whilst there are 4 signatures stating they have used the land for 

 over 30 years, the remaining 48 signatures from residents stating they use the land for 

Page 25

7



 

 

 the purposes of ‘recreation, dog walking, air and relaxation’ do not say how long they 

 have used the land for. As such this evidence offers no weight to satisfy this element 

 of the criteria. 

34. The Council has already set out above its concerns about the weight that can be 

 offered to the evidence in the form of 4 signatures.  

35. The Council is of the opinion that there is insufficient evidence of a qualifying use of 

 the land for a continuous period of over 20 years and this element of the criteria is not 

 satisfied.  

Conclusion 

36. It is clear from evidence provided by the applicant that it does not satisfy the criteria 

 set out in section 15 (2) of the 2006 Act.  

37. For the above reasons the Council invites the Registration Authority to consider the 

 matters set out in this  statement and dismiss the application.   

 

 

Page 26

7



11, Lime Grove, Woking, GU22 9PW 

Email:   chair@hoevalleynf.co.uk 

Tel:  07818441148 
For Attn, 

Ms C Valliant, 

Local Commons Registration Officer, 

Surrey County Council 

Dear Ms Valliant, 

Dear Ms Valliant, 

Whilst the application is in my name it is made on behalf of The Hoe Valley Neighbourhood Forum, 
and as such represents the views of the residents of Elmbridge, Kingfield, and Old Woking. 

Referring to the letter of objection submitted by Woking Borough Council, I would make the 
following observations:- 

a) Under 3 The Commons Act 2006 it does not matter who manages the land.   The Act only
stipulates who actually owns the land, a fact the council accept as being they as landowners.
It makes no mention of any land or properties adjoining or adjacent to the Recreation
Ground.

b) Under item 4, a planning consents granted in 1948 and again in 1964 are now “timed out”
and have no relevance as trigger events and as such should be ignored.

c) Under item 5, The Act makes no mention as to proving how the current landowner obtained
the land, or from whom, therefore this matter should be ignored as not being relevant.

d) Under item 6/7/8, Woking Council accept they ae the landowners and that it is maintained
for recreational purposes and NOT being used for residential purposes.   Under The
Commons Act of 2006 it matters not who maintains the land or for what purpose.   I
therefore submit that these items should be ignored

e) Under item 8, the definition of As of Right is that a person has not been given a specific right
to use a parcel of land for any purpose.   The residents surrounding this recreation ground
and those having bought their homes under private purchase agreements have NEVER been

ANNEX D

Page 27

7

mailto:chair@hoevalleynf.co.uk


given any specific right of use of this land nor been made aware of any statutory right to do 
so.   I therefore submit that they should be classed as having used the land “as of right”. 

f) Under the Woking Council Site Allocation Development Plan Document there is no mention 
of this land being classified as SHLAA assessed land.   No planning applications are in motion 
for this site.   A previous planning application, (conveniently not referred to by the council), 
for the demolition of some garages, on land adjoining, but separate from, the recreation 
ground, was refused planning consent on the grounds that the access roads to the site, and 
shared by the recreation ground, were too narrow for emergency service and large goods 
vehicles to access the site.   These access roads could not be widened without the need for 
compulsory purchase of privately owned properties.   It was decided that this means of 
obtaining ownership was not appropriate. 

g) Under sec15(2) of The Commons Act 2006 an application for redesignation of land requires a 
“significant number of inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within a locality 
have indulged, as of right, in any lawful sports and pastimes on the land for a period of 20 
years or more and that they wish to continue as such.   You will see from the submissions in 
the original application that this criteria has been fulfilled   It does not stipulate that each 
separate signatory has to have used the land continuously for over 20 years.   I submit that 
the 4 signatories claiming use for use 20years shows that the land has been used as such for 
this period of time.   The remaining signatories show a continual and current usage. 

Under the Councils “Grounds for Objection 

h) Under item 17, the land has been used, as of right, due to the landowner not having given 
notice of any statutory right to use the land.   There are no signs attached to the land to 
indicate any, and what, statutory right residents have, if any. 

i) The burden of proof, as laid down under sec 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 has clearly 
been shown that all qualifying criteria have been proved. 

j) Under item21, Woking Council have accepted that the number of signatories obtained 
constitutes a significant number. 

k) Under item 23 Woking Council accept that the area, according to the map previously 
submitted, from whence the signatures were collected, shows the residents to all be from 
the local area. 

l) Under item 24, if Woking Council wish to dispute that the signatories are from the local area 
all they need do is to examine their own records in order to confirm this. 

m) Under items 25/26 Woking Council accept that the sport and/or recreational activities do 
not have to be organised or to have a communal element and may be informal and solitary 
such as dog walking are sufficient.    It is felt that the council are being too pedantic in 
demanding to know how often and how much the recreation ground is being used by each 
individual signatory.   Do they expect a statement, under oath or affirmation, from each 
signatory? 

n) Under item 27, once again we submit that if the council have not given a specific consent, or 
informed the residents of any statutory right as to what residents can or cannot do on the 
land then the residents are using the land “as of right”. 

o) Under item 28 the council infer there has been a right to use the land for air and exercise 
with no force, without secrecy and without written consent.   The council provided a fence 
around the recreation ground with open access points for the residents to use, thereby 
providing free and easy access to the land.   The residents have had “open” access without 
secrecy. 

Page 28

7



p) Under item 29, we submit that the council have not made clear that all residents have 
statutory permission to use the land, or any restrictions placed on the land, therefore we 
submit that they have used the land “as of right”. 

q) Under item 30, The Commons Act 200 sec15(2) only specifies that a significant number of 
residents use the land and that that use has been continuous for a period exceeding 20 
years.   It does not require evidence of continuous use exceeding 29years by each and all 
signatories. 

r) Under item 35, it is the opinion of The Hoe Valley Neighbourhood Forum that sufficient 
evidence of continuous use by a significant number of local residents for air and exercise 
over a period exceeding 20 years exists. 

 

Conclusion  

It is clear, by evidence, that a significant number of local residents use this site on a regular basis for 
air and exercise on an as of right basis and that those residents wish to continue to do so. 

For the above reasons we, The Hoe Valley Neighbourhood Forum, submit that the Registrations 
Authority consider the matters set out in our response to the letter of objection submitted by 
Woking Borough Council and invite you to grant our application that the Elmbridge Recreation 
Ground be reclassified as a Local Village Green. 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

 

Robert Shatwell 

Chair, 

Hoe Valley Neighbourhood Forum 

Page 29

7



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMONS ACT 2006 

STATUTORY DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF AN OBJECTION 

I, VANESSA TABNER of Woking Borough Council, Civic Offices, Gloucester 
Square, Woking, Surrey, GU21 6YL do solemnly and sincerely declare as follows: 

1. I am employed by Woking Borough Council ("the Council") as the Senior
Estates Manager in the Asset Management team and I have been so
employed since 29 October 1998.

2. The Council owns a range of assets which includes commercial properties
and land. The Asset Management team is responsible for the operational
management and maintenance of these assets. Responsibility for the
Council's corporate land holdings falls within my remit.

3. There is now produced to me and marked as "Exhibit A" an official copy of
the register of title in respect of application land at Land forming part of
Queen Elizabeth Way, Woking registered under HM Land Registry title
number SY756213 ("the Land").

4. There is now produced to me and marked as "Exhibit B" an official copy of
the H M Land Registry filed plan in respect of the Land outlined in red ..

5. The title confirms that Woking Borough Council is the registered freeholder
owner of the Land.

6. The Property Register shows that the land was acquired by the Council
pursuant to the Housing Act 1980 or Part V of the Housing Act 1985 and has
the benefit of and is subject to the easements and other rights prescribed by
paragraph 2 of Schedule 2 to the Housing Act 1980 or Schedule 6 to the
Housing Act 1985.

7. The Land is subject to a Conveyance dated 12 April 1951 and made between
A and J Simmonds Limited of the one part and The Urban District Council of
Woking of the second part ("the Conveyance"). This is shown at Entry 1 of the
Charges register. The Conveyance relates to the sale of the land by A & J
Simmonds to The Urban District of Woking. There is now produced to me and
marked as "Exhibit C" a copy of the Conveyance.

8. The Conveyance confirms that the housing estate was acquired by The
Urban District of Woking, the Council's predecessor for the purposes of its
statutory function under The Housing Acts 1936-1949.

9. Planning records show that planning permission was granted in 16 July 1948
for the houses in the Elmbridge estate including the streets and open spaces
bearing planning reference number 3001. There is now produced to me and
marked as "Exhibit D" a copy of the planning permission 3001.

1 O. Planning records also show that a subsequent planning consent was granted
on 25 February 1965 for the construction of a rear access to serve the council
houses bearing planning reference number 18850. The plans show the
recreation ground in situ. There is now produced to me and marked as
"Exhibit E" a copy of the planning permission 18850.

ANNEX E

Page 31

7



Page 32

7



Page 33

7



Page 34

7



Page 35

7



Page 36

7



Page 37

7



Page 38

7



Page 39

7



Page 40

7



Page 41

7



Page 42

7



Page 43

7



Page 44

7



Page 45

7



Page 46

7



Page 47

7



Page 48

7



Page 49

7



Page 50

7



Page 51

7



Page 52

7



Page 53

7



Page 54

7



Page 55

7



Page 56

7



Page 57

7



Page 58

7



Page 59

7



Page 60

7



Page 61

7



Page 62

7



Page 63

7



Page 64

7



Page 65

7



Page 66

7



Page 67

7



Page 68

7



Page 69

7



Page 70

7



Page 71

7



Page 72

7



From: Robert Shatwell
To: vanessa.tabner@woking.gov.ul
Cc: Amanda Francis; Catherine Valiant
Subject: Elmbridge recreation Ground
Date: 10 December 2021 22:20:38

Caution: This email originated from outside Surrey County Council. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the
content is safe.

Dear Ms Tabner
I am in receipt of copy of your sworn statement of evidence in respect to the council’s objection
to having the land redesignated as a local village green.

a. There is no question as to the lawful ownership of the land.
b. All planning applications granted, both in 1948 and 1965 were in respect to housing in

Elmbridge Lane and Queen Elizabeth Way. These planning consents have been fulfilled
and should any other planning be considered it would require a further planning consent.
No application has been made for further development.

c. Whilst you state, in para 11, that residents have a statutory right to access the land you do
not state what statutory right there is. In order for there to be a statutory right there is
required to be a statute in law laying down exactly what rights apply and to whom. For
example for me to graze cattle on this land then I would need to be served with notice
that under sec ??? of Act??? You Robert Shatwell of ..... address, are hereby permitted to
graze a maximum of 10 beef cattle on land known as Elmbridge Common, for a period of X
years. This notice is required to be attached to the land and served on all persons having
need of it, I.e. the residents. This has never been done therefore I submit that the
residents have been using this land “as of right”. This is not shown in any part of the
documents submitted by you, on behalf of Woking Borough Council and as such I have
made representation to Surrey County Council.

As landowners Woking Borough Council could avoid any unpleasantness by voluntarily agreeing
to have this land redesignated as local village green. WBC would continue to own the land and
have all rights of ownership. By having the land redesignated as a Local Village Green it would
render protection as a green open space. This could then be used for the benefit of the local
residents.
Yours faithfully
Robert Shatwell
Sent from Mail for Windows

ANNEX F

Page 73

7

mailto:robertshatwell@yahoo.co.uk
mailto:vanessa.tabner@woking.gov.ul
mailto:Amanda.Francis@woking.gov.uk
mailto:catherine.valiant@surreycc.gov.uk
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

To: Planning & Regulatory Committee Date: 29 June 2022 

By: Planning Group Manager  

District(s) Waverley Borough Council  Electoral Division(s): 

   Waverley Eastern Villages  

   Mr Deanus 

  Case Officer: 

  David Maxwell 

Purpose: For Information Grid Ref:  501773 137324 

Title: Minerals/Waste Application WA/2019/0796  

Decision on planning appeal ref: APP/B3600/W/21/3268579 and on costs application 

LOXLEY WELL SITE - LAND SOUTH OF DUNSFOLD ROAD AND EAST OF HIGH LOXLEY 
ROAD, DUNSFOLD, SURREY, GU8 4BW 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY REPORT 

On 27 November 2020, the Planning and Regulatory Committee refused planning application 

Ref. WA/2019/0796 for the construction, operation and decommissioning of a well site for the 

exploration and appraisal of hydrocarbon minerals from one exploratory borehole (Loxley-1) and 

one side - track borehole (Loxley - 1z) for a temporary period of three years involving the siting 

of plant and equipment, the construction of a new access track, a new highway junction with 

High Loxley Road, highway improvements at the junction of High Loxley Road and Dunsfold 
Road and the erection of a boundary fence and entrance gates with restoration to agriculture. 

This report provides details of the outcome of a recovered appeal against that decision and an 
associated application for partial costs. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Committee notes the result and outcomes of the 

appeal and associated application for partial costs made by UKOG (234) Ltd 

against the decision of Surrey County Council not to grant planning permission 

Ref. WA/2019/0796 on 27 November 2020. 

 

Appeal details 

Appellant  

UKOG (234) Ltd 

Appeal start date 

1 March 2021 

Page 75

8

Item 8



Appeal procedure  

Public inquiry held between 27 July and 13 August 2021. 

 

Illustrative material 

Site Plan 

Plan 1 

Aerial Photographs 

Aerial 1 and 2 

Site Photographs 

Figures 1 to 16 

APPEAL CONTEXT 

 

1. Planning application ref. WA/2019/0796 was considered at Planning and Regulatory 

Committee on 27th November 2020. The application proposed: The construction, 

operation and decommissioning of a well site for the exploration and appraisal of 

hydrocarbon minerals from one exploratory borehole (Loxley-1) and one side - track 

borehole (Loxley - 1z) for a temporary period of three years involving the siting of plant 

and equipment, the construction of a new access track, a new highway junction with 

High Loxley Road, highway improvements at the junction of High Loxley Road and 

Dunsfold Road and the erection of a boundary fence and entrance gates with restoration 

to agriculture.  

 

2. The Officer’s recommendation to the Committee was that the application be permitted 

subject to conditions. Following the debate at the meeting, a motion to refuse the 

planning application was supported by a majority of Committee Members and the 

Committee resolved to refuse the planning application for the following reasons: 

Reason 1: It has not been demonstrated that the highway network is of an appropriate 
standard for use by the traffic generated by the development, or that the traffic generated 
by the development would not have a significant adverse impact on highway safety 
contrary to Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011 Policy MC15. 
  
Reason 2: It has not been demonstrated that the applicant has provided information 
sufficient for the mineral planning authority to be satisfied that there would be no 
significant adverse impact on the appearance, quality and character of the landscape 
and any features that contribute towards its distinctiveness, including its designation as 
an Area of Great Landscape Value, contrary to Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011 
Policy MC14(iii). 
 

3. The application was then refused by notice dated 15th December 2020. The applicant, 

UKOG (234) Ltd, appealed to the Planning Inspectorate under section 78 of the Town 

and County Planning Act 1990 in February 2021 and made a claim for partial costs 

against the County Council on the basis that the highways evidence advanced in support 

if the first reason for refusal was considered weak. 

 

BACKGROUND  

Page 76

8



4. The appeal site is located in a rural landscape approximately one mile north-east of the 

village of Dunsfold and half-a-mile north of Dunsfold Park in an area known as Loxhill. It 

extends to an area of 2.3 hectares and comprises worked agricultural fields situated in 

rolling countryside. The proposed well site compound would be situated to the south and 

west of four established woodland blocks, three of which are the subject of a clear-fell 

license granted to the Hascombe Estate by the Forestry Commission. 

 

5. The site is situated in Countryside beyond the Green Belt and is designated as an Area 

of Great Landscape Value (AGLV). The boundary with the Surrey Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) lies approximately 530 metres to the north of the 

well site compound. There are three residential properties lying in extensive grounds 

located to the north, south and south-west of the proposed well site compound, the 

nearest of which is Thatched House Farm located approximately 330 metres to the north 

of the centre of the compound. These three properties contain a total of seven Grade II 

listed buildings between them. Thatched House Farm and High Billinghurst Farm to the 

south also accommodate established local businesses including sheep and organic pig 

farming, a craft brewery and an annual cancer festival at the former and an events venue 

hosting up to 50 events annually at the latter.  

 

6. Lydia Park and New Acres are situated around 485 metres east of the centre of the well 

site compound and comprise a traveller site and mobile home park off Stovolds Hill. A 

further 4 applications have been permitted by Waverley Borough Council for gypsy and 

traveller accommodation on land to the north and west of Lydia Park, the closest being 

420 metres to the north-east. 

 

7. The proposed development is concerned with the exploration and appraisal stages of 

hydrocarbon development using conventional methods and does not involve hydraulic 

fracturing. It involves the drilling of a new well (Loxley-1) and one side-track well (Loxley-

1z) for the exploration and appraisal of oil and gas for a temporary period of 3 years with 

restoration to agriculture. The primary target for exploration is gas from the Portland 

Sandstone Formation within the Godley Bridge Gas Discovery. The secondary target is 

oil from the deeper Kimmeridge Limestone Formation. The proposal will be carried out in 

4 distinct phases. 

 

8. Phase 1 (Access and Well Site Construction) would last for 14 weeks and include the 

construction of a new junction within High Loxley Road, the development of the well site 

compound with an impermeable membrane, the installation of a new access track to 

connect the new junction with the well site compound and minor highway improvement 

works on High Loxley Road and at the junction of High Loxley Road and Dunsfold Road.  

 

9. Phase 2 (Drilling, Testing and Appraisal) would last up to 60 weeks and include the 

mobilisation and demobilisation of surface plant and machinery, the drilling of the well 

and side-track well using a drilling rig up to 38 metres in height, subsequent appraisal by 

initial short-term flow testing and extended well testing which is likely to involve the use 

of a crane when necessary up to 42 metres in height, and the potential deployment of a 

rig (up to 35 metres in height) or a coil tubing unit (up to 25 metres in height) to support 

any maintenance workover. Drilling, testing and appraisal represent a continuous 

process and involve 24 hour operations. The need for night time working will be 

minimised however where this cannot be avoided, operations are likely to be intermittent 

and of a temporary nature.  

 

10. Phase 3 (Well Plugging, Abandonment and Decommissioning) would take place over a 

period of 5 weeks and include the removal of all surface equipment followed by the 

plugging and abandonment of the well.  

 

Page 77

8



11. Phase 4 (Site Restoration) would take 5 weeks and involving the restoration of the site to 

its original use subject to a period of aftercare. If commercially exploitable reserves of 

hydrocarbons are found to be present, then restoration would be delayed pending the 

submission of a further planning application to retain the site to enable long term 

production to take place prior to the carrying out of restoration and aftercare. The site 

would be restored back to agriculture and include a legacy enhancement programme. 

This would include the replacement of trees and hedgerows removed during construction 

works, a programme to retain and protect existing trees and hedgerows and a timed 

programme for the planting of new trees and hedgerows and the creation of new 

biodiversity habitat. This would be designed to deliver biodiversity and wider 

environmental net-gain making use of native species and reflecting the historic use of the 

site as worked agriculture land and forestry.  

 

12. The proposal would result in a maximum of up to 20 heavy goods vehicle (HGV) 

movements per day between 0700 and 1700 hours Monday to Thursday and 0900 to 

1300 hours on Friday and Saturday. All lorry traffic will be routed via Dunsfold Road and 

the A281 to the east. 

 

THE APPEAL 

13. A public inquiry was opened into the appeal against the County Council’s decision by the 

Planning Inspector on 27th July 2021. It was held virtually and sat for a total of nine days. 

As Officers had recommended that the planning application be permitted , the County 

Council’s witnesses were all external consultants. 

 

14. On 5th January 2022, the appeal was recovered for determination by the Secretary of 

State for the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. As a result of this, 

the Inspector made recommendations in a report to the Secretary of State rather than 

determining the application himself. 

 

15. On 7th June 2022, the County Council received notification that the Minister of State for 

Housing, on behalf of the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, 

had allowed the appeal and granted planning permission, subject to conditions. The 

Inspector had recommended that the appeal be allowed and the Minister of State for 

Housing, on behalf of the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, 

had agreed with this recommendation.  

 
Highway Matters 

 

16. In respect of the first reason for refusal, the County Council’s principal concerns related 

to the use of Dunsfold Road and its junction with High Loxley Road by HGVs, particularly 

impacts on highway safety when larger HGVs would need to manoeuvre on the highway 

to turn into High Loxley Road. The Inspector considered that this could be safely 

managed by way of the proposed traffic management scheme and would not have any 

significant adverse impacts on highway safety or the effective operation of the highway 

network. 

 

17. The Secretary of State agreed with the Inspector that the proposed traffic management 

scheme had been shown to be acceptable in terms of highway safety and the local road 

network and that the proposal complied with Policy MC15 of the Surrey Minerals Plan 

2011. He further agreed that the arrangements for site access and traffic generated by 

the development would not have any significant adverse impacts on highway safety or 

the effective operation of the highway network. 

 
Landscape Character and Appearance  

Page 78

8



 

18. In respect of the second reason for refusal, the County Council argued that the 

landscape, which was within the setting of the AONB and within an AGLV was a ‘valued’ 

landscape as defined in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The Inspector 

disagreed and, whilst acknowledging the value of the landscape to local residents, could 

not consider the landscape to be valued in NPPF terms. The Inspector did acknowledge 

however that there was harm to the landscape character, visual effects and tranquillity, 

contrary to Surrey Minerals Plan Policies MC14 and MC12. 

 

19. The Secretary of State agreed with the Inspector’s analysis that there would be 

significant levels of landscape and visual impacts from the proposal and that it did not 

comply with Policy MC14 of the Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 and policies in the Waverley 

Local Plan. These significant harms to the AONB and its setting, and the AGLV would 

not be permanent however and had to be weighed in the balance against the short-term 

nature of the proposals, the restoration scheme and the reversibility of the proposal; and 

in addition to the benefits of the scheme. 

 
Impact on Local Residents and Businesses 

20. The Inspector also considered the effect of the proposals on the living conditions and 

local businesses, as did the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State agreed with the 

Inspector that while there would be some impact in terms of noise and visual intrusion, 

the noise could be controlled by condition and there would be moderate harm to the 

overall character and appearance of the area. 

 
Other matters 

21. The Secretary of State considered several other matters addressed by the Inspector 

including downstream impacts, benefits, impacts on proposed residential development at 

Dunsfold Park and the nearby gypsy and traveller community, ecology, groundwater and 
air pollution, common land and the financial situation of the operator. 

Planning Balance 

22. The Secretary of State accepted that the proposal was contrary policies MC12 and 

MC14 of the Surrey Minerals Plan 2011. He then considered whether there were other 

material considerations which indicated that the application should be determined not in 
accordance with the plan. The Secretary of State’s findings are as follows: 

 
33. Weighing against the appeal are harm to the landscape character and 
appearance of the area, including degrading the qualities of the setting of the 

AONB and failure to demonstrate the site has been selected to minimise adverse 

impacts; and harm to local businesses. The Secretary of State affords these 
matters collectively moderate weight.  

34. In favour of the appeal the Secretary of State affords the benefits of the gas 

exploration/appraisal phase great weight, and the economic benefits limited 

weight.  

35. Overall, the Secretary of State considers that the material considerations in 
this case indicate a decision which is not in line with the development plan – i.e. a 

grant of permission.  

36. The Secretary of State therefore concludes that the appeal should be allowed, 

and planning permission granted, subject to conditions.  
 

PARTIAL CLAIM FOR COSTS 

Page 79

8



 

23. The applicant only sought to have their costs covered in respect of the first reason for 

refusal. This was largely on the basis that the Planning & Regulatory Committee came to 

a decision contrary to officers’ advice without any technical evidence. They alleged that 

the highways evidence was weak with no technical reasons advanced, it was flawed and 

anecdotal. The County Council therefore behaved unreasonably. 

 

24. The County Council disagreed. The Committee was entitled to come to a different view, 

particularly given the unusual nature of the highway arrangements, the views expressed 

were both reasonable and substantiated at the appeal. While the Inspector’s own 

findings differed to those of the Council, he did not consider their approach was 

unreasonable. 

 

25. The Secretary of State agreed with the Inspector that the County Council’s approach 

was not unreasonable and therefore the application for the partial award of costs was 
refused. 

  

CONCLUSIONS: 

 

26. The Secretary of State granted planning permission, but acknowledged the County 

Council’s concerns in respect of landscape and visual appearance, with the main 

difference being the weight given to those concerns by the Inspector and the Secretary 

of State. Officers had come to a similar conclusion in the report to Committee. The 

weight to be given to different factors is a matter for the decision maker however so 

Members were entitled to come to a different view. The Secretary of State and the 

Inspector clearly disagreed with the County Council in respect of highways matters, 

however in not awarding costs on that point clearly felt that the Committee’s concerns 

had some merit. 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Committee notes the result and outcomes of the 

appeal and associated application for partial costs made by UKOG (234) Ltd 

against the decision of Surrey County Council not to grant planning permission 

Ref. WA/2019/0796 on 27 November 2020. 

 
Financial and value for money implications 

 

None. 

 
Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 

The decision being reported was taken by the Minister of State for Housing, on behalf of the 

Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities in accordance with Section 78 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
Risk Management Implications 

 

None

Page 80

8



 

Contact Caroline Smith or David Maxwell 

Tel. no. 07968 832700 or 07814 284982 

Background papers 

 

Appeal decision and costs decision both dated 7 June 2022 in relation to planning appeal ref: 
APP/B3600/W/21/3268579.   

Current minerals and waste planning appeals - Surrey County Council (surreycc.gov.uk) 

 

Page 81

8

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/land-planning-and-development/planning/applications-register/process/appeals/current-minerals-and-waste-planning-appeals


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Application Site Area 

Page 83

8



This page is intentionally left blank



2018 Aerial Photos

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

Aerial 1 : Loxley Well Site, Dunsfold

All boundaries are approximate

P
age 85

8



2018 Aerial Photos

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

Aerial 2 : Loxley Well Site, Dunsfold

All boundaries are approximate

P
age 86

8



Figure 1: Well Site Host Field Looking North East 

Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 87

8



Figure 2: Vehicular Entrance to Well Site Compound Looking North East 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 88

8



Figure 3: Western Boundary of Well Site Compound Looking South 

Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 89

8



Figure 4: Western Boundary of Burchetts Woodland Block Looking North 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 90

8



Figure 5: View Looking East from High Loxley Road 

Along Route of Proposed New Access 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 91

8



Figure 6: View Looking North Along Eastern Boundary 

of Well Site Host Field 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 92

8



Figure 7: View Looking West Along Northern Boundary 

of Well Site Host Field 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 93

8



Figure 8: View Looking West Along Track 

to the North of the Well Site Compound Host Field 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 94

8



Figure 9: View Looking South from Southern Boundary 

of Well Site Host Field Towards High Billinghurst Farm 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 95

8



Figure 10: View Looking South Along High Loxley Road 

with Site Entrance on the Left 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 96

8



Figure 11: View Looking East from High Loxley Road 

Towards Thatched House Farm 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 97

8



Figure 12: - View Looking North Along High Loxley Road

from Proposed Entrance Point 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 98

8



Figure 13: View Looking West Towards Sharp Corner 

on Dunsfold Road from Junction with High Loxley Road 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 99

8



Figure 14: View Looking East Along Dunsfold Road

from Junction with High Loxley Road 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 100

8



Figure 15: View Looking South Towards High Loxley Road

and its Junction with Dunsfold Road 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 101

8



Figure 16: View Looking West Along Dunsfold Road

with Vegetation Screening on the Left 
Application Number : MO09/0110

Application Number : WA/2019/0796

P
age 102

8


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	Minutes

	7 APPLICATION FOR VILLAGE GREEN STATUS, LAND AT ELMBRIDGE RECREATION GROUND, KINGFIELD
	Borough/District Council
	Consultees (Statutory and Non Statutory)
	Summary of publicity undertaken
	CONTACT
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	ANNEX A Plan of land claimed as TVG
	ANNEX B Evidence in support of application
	ANNEX C Woking Borough Council objection
	ANNEX D Applicants response to objection
	ANNEX E Staturory Declaration from Woking Borough Council
	ANNEX F Applicants response to statutory declaration

	8 Decision on planning appeal ref: APP/B3600/W/21/3268579 and on costs application - LOXLEY WELL SITE - LAND SOUTH OF DUNSFOLD ROAD AND EAST OF HIGH LOXLEY ROAD, DUNSFOLD, SURREY, GU8 4BW.<br/>
	Loxley Site Plan
	v5 P and R LOXLEY0072Committee 22Oct


